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STREET ADDRESS: 	 Central District Office	 MAILING ADDRESS:

CERTIFIED MAIL #91 7108 2133 3932 4450 3264

August 5, 2008

Mr. Kevin Steward
President
Westfall Aggregate & Materials, Inc.
6790 Brooksmiller Road
Circieville, OH 43113

Re:	 Notice of Violation based upon the results of the Full Compliance Evaluation of
Westfall Aggregate & Materials, Inc. (Facility Premise Number 01 65 010135)

Dear Mr. Steward:

On June 24-2008, Ohio Environmental Protection Agency (Ohio EPA), Division of Air
Pollution Control (DAPC), Central District Office (CDO) conducted a full compliance
evaluation IFCP\ of \J'iestfal! AnnrntQ & Mtp Ie inr' fA/ArsA\ I,-.,4,-.A .+ .Iflfltfl I
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Road in Circleville, Ohio. The purpose of the FCE was to document WAM's compliance
status with the effective permits-to-install (PIls).

Listed below are "Findings" based upon a review of emissions units at the facility, a review
of specific record keeping maintained onsite, specific process information, and reports
submitted to Ohio EPA. The "Findings" are followed by "Violation(s)" (if applicable) and
"Requested Action(s)" necessary to address stated violations.

Asphalt Plant Findings:

Finding :	 Emissions unit P901 — Violations of monitoring, recordkeeping,
reporting and emission testing requirements

CDO cannot ascertain if emission unit P901 is in compliance with synthetic minor
restrictions employed to avoid Title V applicability. In order to demonstrate
compliance with voluntary synthetic minor restrictions, WAM was required to perform
emissions rate testing, maintain monthly records of asphalt production, calculate and
maintain records of the rolling, 12-month summation of asphalt production, and
perform periodic asphalt plant burner tuning.
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WAM performed initial emissions rate testing as required in PTI 01-08940 on September 19,
2007, but did not perform baseline pollutant emissions monitoring using a portable monitor.
Without baseline pollutant emissions measurements, WAM could not perform burner tuning
in accordance with PTI 01-08940. Also, the facility did not maintain the calculated rolling,
12-month summation of asphalt production, and burner tuning was not performed according
to the schedule set forth in P11 01-08940. Forms for burner tuning events that were
performed were not completed, and were not submitted to Ohio EPA as required in the
applicable Pit. CDO is reviewing the emissions test report to determine if the September
19, 2007 emissions test was performed in accordance with PTI 01-08940.

Further, the purpose of asphalt plant burner tuning, required in PTI 01-08940 for emissions
unit P901, is to "ensure that the burner is adjusted properly so that air pollution emissions
remain in compliance with allowable emissions rates and are minimized." Since WAM did
not establish baseline pollutant emissions measurements, COO cannot determine whether
current burner emissions are in compliance with allowable mass emissions rate limitations.

Be aware that for synthetic minor facilities, violatiOns of an ". . .emission limit or permit
condition that affects the source's PSD, NSR or Title V status (i.e., falls to comply with
permit restrictions that limit the source's potential emissions below the appropriate
thresholds)..." are considered High Priority Violations by both Ohio EPA and the United
States Environmental Protection Agency1.

Violations:

Failure to maintain records demonstrating compliance with the rolling, 12-month annual
mass emission rate for carbon monoxide (CO), in conjunction with the failure to perform,
record, and report required asphalt plant burner tuning are violations of synthetic minor
permit conditions that affect the source's Title V status. Further, WAM failed to establish
baseline air pollutant emissions concentrations in accordance with the requirements of PIt
01-08940 during the September 19, 2007 emissions testing of emissions unit P901.

Failure to perform asphalt production recordkeeping in accordance with the effective P11 for
emissions unit P901 constitutes a violation of the terms and conditions of the effective P11.
Violation of the terms and conditions of an effective PTI is considered a violation of ORC
3704.05(C), which states:

1 From US EPA "Policy on Timely and Appropriate Enforcement Response to High Priority Violators"
(1999) [http:llww.epa.gov/Compliance/resourceslpolicieslcivillcaalstationary/issue-ta-rpt.pdt]
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"No person who is the holder of a permit issued under division
(F) or (G) of section 3704.03 of the Revised Code shall violate
any of its terms or conditions."

In addition to the violations listed above, failure to perform periodic burner monitoring,
burner tuning recordkeeping, submit the annual burner tuning report, and perform emissions
testing required by the effective PT! for emissions unit P901 are violations of the terms and
conditions of the effective PTI. Violations of the terms and conditions of an effective PT! are
considered violations of ORC 3704.05(C).

Requested Actions:

CDO requests that WAM perform the following actions for the resolution of these violations:

Reconstruct and submit records of the monthly and rolling, 12-month
summation of asphalt production for P901 from 2006, 2007 and 2008 to
date. These records should be submitted within forty-five (45) days of
receipt of this letter, and may be submitted via e-mail if formatted as
Portable Document Format (PDF) flies.

Establish baseline pollutant emissions data for burner tuning as required
in Section ll.E.2.d of PT! 01-08940 for emissions unit P901. These
established baseline pollutant emissions measurements should be utilized
for future burner tuning events. If necessary, please perform additional
emissions testing for carbon monoxide (CO) using U.S. EPA Method 10
and nitrogen oxides (ND) using U.S. EPA Method 7E for the purpose of
establishing baseline pollutant emissions measurements for burner tuning
within sixty (60) days of receipt of this letter. This testing should be
performed in accordance with the requirements of PTI 01-08940 for
emissions unit P901 while operating at or near the maximum capacity of
the asphalt plant. WAM should submit an ITT at least thirty (30) days
prior to the scheduled emissions test date, and complete the testing within
forty-five (45) days of ITT submittal.

Hi. Submit baseline pollutant emissions data for burner tuning to CDO. If
necessary, this submittal may be in the form of an emission test report. If
additional emissions testing is performed, please submit the test report
within thirty (30) days of completion of the CO and NO emissions testing.
This test report should include the total asphalt production (in tons) during
the emission test, the hourly asphalt production rate (in tons per hour), air
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pollutant emissions for both CO and NO in parts per million (ppm) and
pounds per hour (lb/hr), and the baseline air pollutant emissions
concentrations for CO and NO in ppm measured and recorded using
WAM's portable air emission monitor.

2.	 Finding:	 Failure to comply with asphalt plant monitoring and recordkeeping
requirements (emissions unit P901)

During the FCE on June 24, 2008, CDO personnel reviewed records maintained on-
site and at the Darby Creek Excavating office and observed problems indicating that
required facility monitoring and recordkeeping was not being performed.
Specifically, CDO made the following observations:

• The pressure drop across the P901 baghouse is monitored, but not
recorded on a daily basis (P901, Section 11.0.2).

• Burner tuning results were not recorded completely or correctly on the
Burner Tuning Reporting Form for Asphalt Plants for July 17, 2007.
Specificaily the analyzer calibration date, air pollutant emissions
baseline levels, records of portable monitoring device calibrations, and
starting and ending pollutant concentrations were not recorded. In
addition, the form did not include an authorized signature (P901
Section 11.0.3)2.

Daily visible emissions (VE) checks when P901 is operating for visible
emissions from the enclosures serving, the hot aggregate elevator,
vibration screens and weigh hopper (P01, Section 11.0.4) were not
performed.

• Daily visible emissions (VE) checks when P901 is operating for visible
emissions from the baghouse stack, aggregate storage bins, and cold
aggregate elevator/conveyor (P901, Section 11.0.5) were not
performed.

• The permittee did maintain daily and monthly records of asphalt
production, but did not maintain the rolling, 12-month summation of
asphalt production (P901, Section ll.C.6).3

2 See Finding 1, this finding referenced here for informational purposes only.
Ibid. see footnote 2 above.
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Violation:

Failure to perform monitoring and recordkeeping required by P11 01-08940 for
emissions unit P901 constitutes a violation of the terms and conditions of the
effective PTI. Violation of The terms and conditions of an effective PTI is considered
a violation of ORC 3704.05(0).

Requested Action:

Immediately institute monitoring and recordkeeping, in accordance with the
requirements of PTI 01-08940, for emissions unit P901 The monitoring and
recordkeeping requirements for emissions unit P901 are found in Section 11.0.

Sand and Gravel Plant Findings:

3.	 Finding:	 Failure to perform visible particulate emissions testing
(emissions units F005 and F006)

WAM was required to perform emissions testing to demonstrate compliance with
both the visible opacity restrictions in PTI 01-08940 for emissions units F005 and
FOOG, which requires emissions testing be performed "on or after the sixtieth day
after the PT! is issued, but not later than 180 days after PT! issuance..."

Also, WAM is subject to New Source Performance Standards Subpart 000 (40
Code of Federal Regulations, Part 60, Subpart 000), which requires emissions
testing be performed "within 60 days after achieving .thp maximum production
rate.. .but not later than 180 days after initial startup..."

To date, CDO has not received an Intent to Test (ITT) notification for this emissions
testing.

Violation:

Failure to perform emissions testing according to the effective PTI is considered a
violation of the terms and conditions of the permit-to-install. Violations of the terms
and conditions of the effective PTI constitute a violation of ORO 3704.05(C).
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Failure to perform emissions testing required under 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart 000
according to the schedule in 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart A (40 CFR 60.8) constitutes a
violation of 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart A and Subpart 000.

Requested Action:

CDC requests that WAM submit an Intent to Test notification (attached) for emission
units F005 and F006 within thirty (30) days of receipt of this letter, and perform
emissions testing no later than forty-five (45) days following the submission of the
ITT notification.

4.	 Finding:	 Failure to apply for and obtain a PTI

On June 24, 2008 during the FCE, WAM personnel informed CDO that a new
emissions unit (drag line powered by a diesel engine) had been installed at the
facility without first obtaining a permit-to-install. This emissions unit was observed in
operation by CDO personnel, and WAM personnel indicated that it had been in
operation for approximately three weeks as of the date of the FCE.

Violation:

The installation of an emissions unit prior to obtaining a permit-to-install constitutes a
violation of Ohio Administrative Code (OAC) rule 3745-31-02(A)(1), which states:

" . . .no person shall cause, permit, or allow. . .installation of a
new source of air pollutants, or cause, permit, or allow the
modification of an air, contaminant source, without first
obtaining a permit-to-install from the directorY"

Violations of OAC rule 3745-31-02(A)(1) are also considered violations of Ohio
Revised Code (ORC) 3745.05(C), which states:

"No person who is the holder of a permit issued under division
(F) or (G) of section 3704.03 of the Revised Code shall violate
any of its terms or conditions."
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Requested Action:

CDO requests that WAM submit a PTIO application for the Drag Line operations and
associated diesel engine within forty-five (45) days of receipt of this letter. This
application should be submitted using the Ohio eBuisness Center's Air Services
website. This website may be found at the following web address-

https://ebiz.epa.ohio.gov

This website also contains important guidance and information regarding the new Air
Services website. Please note that WAM is currently a Synthetic. Minor Title V
(SMTV) facility, and is required to use this online system for future permit
applications and report submissions.

5. Finding:	 Removal of emissions units 3001 and B002

During the FCE on June 24, 2008, WAM personnel indicated that emissions units
3001 and B002 had both been sold and removed from the facility in October of
2006, and that &ectricat power for the asphaR parit and aggregate plant was now
supplied through dedicated electrical service rather than generated on-site.

Requested Action:

CDO requests that WAM submit a letter stating that emissions units 3001 and 3002
have been removed from the facility.

6. Finding:	 Failure to maintain rolling, 12-month summations

During the FCE on June 24, 2008, CDO personnel observed problems with
recordkeeping for rolling, 12-month summations for emissions units 3001 and 3002.
Specifically, the facility did not maintain rolling, 12-month summations of operating
hours of emission units 3001 and B002.

Violation:

Failure to perform recordkeeping required by the effective P11 for emissions units
BOOl and B002 constitutes a violation of the terms and conditions of the effective
PTI. Violation of the terms and conditions of an effective PTI is considered a
violation of ORC 3704.05(C).
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Requested Action:

CDO is aware that emissions units 8001 and 8002 have been shut down.
Submission of the letter requested in Finding 5 (above) will resolve these violations
with respect to emissions units 8001 and 3002.

At this time, CDO is not requesting records for emissions uhits 3001 and 8002
because these emissions units were not extensively operated at the facility.

7.	 Finding:	 Diesel fuel sulfur content monitoring and recordkeeping

During the FCE on June 24, 2008, ODO personnel observed problems with diesel
fuel monitoring and recordkeeping required for emissions units 3001, 8002, 3003,
and 3004. Specifically, the facility did not perform or have the supplier perform
sulfur content or heat content analyses as required by the effective permit. Failure to
perform this monitoring precluded the facility from complying with the recordkeeping
and reporting requirements for diesel fuel sulfur content. In addition, CDO cannot
determine compliance with the sulfur dioxide emissions limitation for 8001 and 8002
rr+hr.r.n	 Irm.e.4	 .-.....-.11,, lID -fI. I. 	.,.,l,.Ii,,nri4-....-....;.....:.........
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3001, 3002, 3003, and B004.

P11 01-08940 for emissions units 3001 and 3002 and P11 01-12032 for emissions
units 8003 and B004 require the following monitoring:

"The permittee shall collect or require the oil supplier to collect
a representétive grab sample for each shipment of any oil that
is received for burning in this emission unit. The permittee
shall perform or require the supplier to perform the analyses for
sulfur content and heat content..."

For 8001 and 8002, PTI 01-08940 further requires the following recordkeeping:

"For each shipment of any oil received for burning in this
emissions unit, the permittee shall maintain records of the total
quantity of oil received, the permittee's or oil supplier's analyses
for sulfur content and heat content, and the calculated sulfur
dioxide emission rate (in lbs/mmstu)..."
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Violation:

Failure to perform monitoring and recordkeeping required by the effective PTls for
emissions units 3001, 3002, 3003, and 3004 constitutes a violation of the terms and
conditions of the effective PTls for emissions units 3001, 3002, 3003, and 3004.
Violation of the terms and conditions of an effective PTI is considered a violation of
ORC 3704.05(0).

Failure to perform recordkeeping required by the effective PTIs for emissions units
3001 and 3002 constitutes a violation of the terms and conditions of the effective
Pus for emissions units BOOl and 3002. Violation of the terms and conditions of an
effective PTI is considered a violation of ORC 3704.05(C).

Req uested Action:

CDO requests that WAM immediately begin to maintain the diesel fuel sulfur content
records required by 01-12032. Records for emissions units B003 and B004 should
be maintained as required by the PTI 01-12032. Further, the new emissions unit
4k.,4,,n.'r. n,-.4.', lin,l n4+k,-, 4 -1-mining	 ..,11 I-,,-.' ,-,-n, ,r,-A 4,.	 rrr.I,.,41-, 41-'?.'
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similar fuel sulfur content restrictions found in PTI 01-12032.

CDO is aware that emissions units 3001 and B002 have been shut down and
removed from the facility, and emissions units 3003 and 3004 are temporarily shut
down. At this time, CDO is not requesting that WAM reconstruct SO 2 emission rate
calculations for emissions units 3001 and B002 because these emissions units were
not extensively operated at the facility.

CDO also requests that WAM obtain and submit records of the sulfur content of each
shipment of diesel fuel received at the facility, in accordance with the requirements
PTI 01-12032. These records should be submitted within forty-five (45) days of the
receipt of this letter. In addition, CDO requests that if these records are not available
that WAM submit a notification that these records are not available.

Facility-Wide Reporting Findings:

8.	 Finding:	 Failure to submit quarterly and semiannual reports

Prior to conducting the FCE on June 24, 2008, CDO personnel reviewed all available
records related to the operations at WAM. This included correspondence, permits
and permit applications, public meeting minutes, and annual Fee Emissions Reports
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CDC personnel were unable to locate quarterly and semiannual reports required by
PTIs 01-08940 and 01-12032 during this file review.

During the FOE on June 24, 2008, ODO personnel reviewed records maintained on-
site by WAM personnel including visible emissions (VE) checks and control measure
implementation records. Included with these records were incomplete quarterly
report documents that had not been submitted to CDO. ODO and WAM personnel
discussed the reporting requirements in the effective PTIs and the format of a typical
report that would be acceptable to Ohio EPA.

Specifically, PTls 01-08940 for emissions units BOOl and B002 and 01-12032 for
emissions unit B003 and B004 both require the quarterly reporting of any
exceedances of the sulfur content restriction.

Also. PTI 01-08940 for emissions units FOOl, F002, F003, F004, and F006 require
quarterly reports of deviations of required inspections and control measure
implementation in Section Il.D of the applicable PTI.

PIc,co ha awra thnfPTIc fl1J1cQ4fl ,nrl fl1A9fl9 rn,,ira ihot nii,rtarI, r1a,intinn

;;; be ;aa in accordancethe reporting requirements of the Genera!
Terms and Conditions of this permit." The General Terms and Conditions require (in
part) the following:

.. .quarterly written reports of (a) any deviations
(excursions).. .shall be submitted to the appropriate Ohio EPA
District Office or local air agency. If no deviations occurred
during a calendar quarter, the permittee shall submit a quarterly
report, which states that no deviations occurred during that
quarter.. .by January 31, April 30, July 31, and October 31 of
each year and shall cover the previous calendar quarters."

Further, FTI 01-08940 for emissions units F005 and P901 require semiannual visible
particulate emissions reports be submitted "by January 31 and July 31 of each year
and shall cover the previous 6-month period."

Violation:

Failure to submit quarterly reports required by the effective PTI constitutes a
violation of the terms and conditions of the effective P11. Violation of the terms and
conditions of the effective P11 is considered a violation of ORO 3704.05(C).
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Failure to submit semiannual reports required by the effective P11 constitutes a
violation of the terms and conditions of the effective PTI. Violation of the terms and
conditions of the effective P11 is considered a violation of ORG 3704.05(0),

Requested Action:

CDC requests that WAM review existing monitoring records, and reconstruct and
submit all quarterly and semiannual reports required by PT! 01-08940 from 2006,
2007 and 2008 to date. If sufficient records and data are not available, or records
are otherwise incomplete, please note this on the applicable report. These reports
should meet the requirements of the General Terms and Conditions of the effective
P11, and be submitted within forty-five (45) days of receipt of this letter.

Additional Information:

Ohio EPA's Office of Compliance Assistance and Pollution Prevention (OCAPP) may be
able to provide free, confidential assistance in the development of monitoring forms and
t'tro+c,r.ic, fl('DD it' or, indc,randant nr,r,rr.,.In4rn, nffin within flk;	 DA
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shared with OCAPP will not be shared with Ohio EPA inspection and enforcement staff.
OCAPP may be contacted at (888) 329-7518 or at ww)A,.epa.state.oh.us/ocao.

Please recognize that the above Findings and Violations were discovered as part of
Westfall Aggregate & Material's full compliance evaluation. They were based upon
observations and information reviewed for each emissions unit listed in the applicable
permits to install.

Also, please note that Ohio Environmental Protection Agency has the authority to seek civil
penalties as provided in section 3704.06 of the Ohio Revised Code (ORC). This letter or
information submitted pursuant to this letter does not constitute a waiver of Ohio EPA's
authority to seek civil penalties as provided in the ORG. The decision on whether or not to
seek such penalties will be made by the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency at a later
date.
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If you have any questions, please contact John McGreevy of my staff at (614) 728-3813.

Sincerely,

c_J 4, gic 47/_4

Mike Riggleman
Supervisor, Permits and Compliance
Division of Air Pollution Control
Central District Office

Attach:	 Ohio Intent to Test Notification Instructions and Form
OCAPP pamphlet

John McGreevy, DAPC/CDO
Adam Ward, Manager, DAPC/CDO
John Paulian, DAPC/CO
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